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THE LEGACY LEARNING TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and independent auditor's report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The Trust is a Multi-Academy trust (MAT) which during the period operated two schools; Acklam Grange
Secondary School and Linthorpe Community Primary School, both serving the catchment of Middlesbrough in
North East England.

It has a capacity of:

Nursery |118
5-16 2,100

The roll in January 2021 census was:

Nursery |105
5-16 2,055

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The charitable company is known as The Legacy Learning Trust (TLLT).

The trustees of The Legacy Leamning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. Details of the trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on pages 1 and 2.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member,

Trustees' indemnities
Trustees are covered by the Education and Skills Funding Agency’s Risk Protection Arrangements. As part of
this scheme Trustees and Governors receive unlimited indemnity.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

Each Trustee's role is linked to a core strand of business e.g. primary/secondary education, finance/business,
human resources, marketing/PR. Recruitment activity is driven by a recruitment and selection process which
includes formation of role profiles and role specifications which are linked to required skill sets or areas of
expertise or need as laid out in the DfE Governance Competency Framework.

Positions or vacancies are advertised externally, for example through the Academy Ambassadors programme.
Applicants are required to submit their skills focussed CV and be interviewed by a selection panel A competitive
recruitment process helps to ensure that the strongest candidates are considered for vacant posts, with the
intention of adding value to the skills of the Trust Board.

Subject to the Articles of Association, the constitution of the Trust Board is as follows:

» Up to 9 trustees appointed by ordinary resolution by Members

* The total number of Trustees, including the Chief Executive Officer, who are employees of the Trust shall
not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees

* The Trust will ensure parent participation, utilising Parent Governors on our Local Councils

* We will ensure a minimum of two Parent Governors will sit on each Local Council, with suitable
procedures in place for the conduct of Parent Governor elections.

-3-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

The Trust is provided with support from the Middlesbrough Governor Development Service through a Service
Level Agreement. The provision of individual training for Trustees and members of the Local Council through an
annual course directory which is reviewed annually to reflect any changes in practice and legislation. Training
has also been provided by the Trust and by Azets focusing on trustee induction, roles, responsibilities and
financial duties.

Organisati tructur:
The trust's governance structure consists of three levels:

Members
Trustees with two committees — Standards and Resources, Employment and Finance
Local Councils of each academy

The Members have ultimate control over the Trust and are responsible for:
* Approving the Articles of Association
* Appointment and removal of Trustees
» Securing the highest standards of accountability from Trustees for the provision of all learners in the
Multi Academy Trust (MAT)
» Appointment of the Trust's auditors and receipt of the trust's audited annual accounts.

The Trustees have overall responsibility for strategic planning and setting the Trust's policy as well as
responsibility for all matters relating to finance and personnel matters. The Trustees have the power to direct
change when required.

The Trust Board focuses its monitoring activity through two committees:
e Standards, focusing on matters relating to standards and quality of teaching and learning, personal
development, welfare, behaviour including safeguarding.
« Resources, Employment and Finance, focusing on finance, resourcing and personnel matters.

Powers are delegated from the Trust Board via a Scheme of delegation, which is reviewed annually.

The overall responsibility for holding school leaders to account and driving forward improvements in
performance, attainment, progress in each academy/school is delegated to the Local Councils with their impact
overseen and monitored and challenged by the Board of Trustees. Local Councils discharge their functions in
line the Trust's Scheme of Delegation.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that the academy/school Local Councils fulfil their statutory obligations
and principal aims and objectives, ensuring that procedures are in place to ensure regularity, propriety and value
for money, setting general policy, adopting the Trust Development Plan and budget, monitoring use of budgets,
external and internal review reports and enabling them to make major decisions about the direction of the Trust,
capital expenditure and key Trust and Headteacher appointments.

The members of the Local Councils are responsible for adopting an annual School Development Plan,
implementing policies laid down by the Board of Trustees.

Through the Trust reporting mechanisms, the Trust Board will receive at least termly CEO/Headteacher reports
and school dashboards on outcomes of work in each school/academy.

During the year under review the Executive Team responsibilities were as follows: (CEQ, CFOO and DCEQ)
Chief Executive Officer: responsibility for setting the overall direction of the Academy Trust;, leading the

development and execution of long-term strategies, managing resources, risk management and communicating,
on behalf of the Trust, with both internal and external stakeholders.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Chief Finance and Operations Officer: responsibility for leading and managing the operational aspects of the
Academy Trust. Providing strategic and operational leadership in all aspects of business activities within the
Academy Trust's schools, and being accountable for the operation, maintenance and development of systems,
processes and procedures relating to budget, finance, administration, HR, IT, facilities and health and safety.

The Headteachers are responsible for the day to day running of their schoal (assisted by the school's senior
leadership team).

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The pay and remuneration of the CEO, Deputy CEO and CFO is decided by the Trust Board. The tfrust has
delegated responsibility to Local Councils of each academy for all other staff, including senior leadership teams
in each academy. Local councils make pay related decisions having regard to the national framework of School
Teacher's Pay and Conditions Document and the Trust's Pay Policy which takes into account the extent to which
staff have achieved their performance objectives.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials

during the relevant period -
Full-time equivalent employee number -

Percentage of fime spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% -
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill -
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

Engagement with employees

Employees are provided with appropriate and relevant information at different stages throughout the year. This
includes Trust and individual school policies, statutory training updates and information related to staff pay. In
addition, communication from Headteachers and senior leaders is frequent, relevant, clear and concise enabling
an informed workforce who are well placed to undertake their roles efficiently and effectively.

Staff voice and staff consultation are regular features of leadership at the trust. In the period ended 31 August
2021, this was particularly prevalent as staff were consulted on the re-introduction of systems, processes and
activities post Covid restrictions, ready for September 2021. It was pleasing to note that whilst staff strongly
agreed that were in favour of some activities returning to the pre-Covid approach, many new systems and
processes that had been introduced because of the restrictions were thought to be worthy of consideration to be
continued. As a result of this staff consultation a hybrid approach was taken in some areas and staff feedback
suggests that the new ways allow greater flexibility and efficiency across the trust.
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Employees are aware of their significant involvement in the performance of individual schools and the trust as a
whole. This awareness comes from information sharing, presentations, team meetings and individual meetings,
led by senior and executive leaders of the trust. The use of layered performance management acts as a tool to
promote the common goals of the company, with each individual contributing to this. The TLLT model of financial
leadership reflects a culture of value for money and ensures financial ownership at all levels which enhances the
company'’s financial performance.

In the same way, employees also share a common awareness of the factors that affect performance and
understand how their contribution serves to enhance the positive and mitigate the negative factors to have the
best possible impact on all outcomes.

In accordance with our policy on equal opportunities in employment, The Legacy Learning Trust will provide
equal opportunities to any employee or job applicant and will not discriminate either directly or indirectly because
of race, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, religion or belief, marital or civil partnership status, age,
disability, or pregnancy and maternity.

Engagement wi iers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trus

Executive and senior leaders promote positive relationships with all stakeholders which is permeated at every
level and trust wide.

Through these relationships suppliers understand the needs of the trust and are able to deliver quality goods and
services to meet those needs, adapting where necessary to keep up to date with how those needs may change.
Examples include adaptable catering and cleaning providers and engagement with local businesses to provide
timely and economical Covid-related emergency supplies.

Parental engagement is a key priority for all schools in the trust. This can be an area of challenge for the trust in
relation to the geographical area it serves and during the period was made more challenging by Covid
restrictions. Pleasingly, some of the systems introduced during the pandemic have improved parental
engagement and elements of these will continue, e.g. video briefings and online parents’ evening appointments.
Returning to face to face events and opportunities for parental engagement, including more face to face parent
meetings in schools is welcomed and prepared for.

Executive, senior and middle leaders contribute confidently to local, regional and national networks mutually
benefitting from relationships with other educational establishments in order to further the trust's objectives.
Executive leaders have established and strong relationships with RSC, DfE, ESFA, PixL, CST and other relevant
bodies.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Trust is presently made up of two academies and does not work with any other organisation, but is
developing links with other schools, academies, colleges and other businesses where these partnerships assist
the Trust's objectives.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The principal objective and activity of the charitable company, in accordance with the Articles of association is to
advance education in the United Kingdom for the public benefit, offering a broad and balanced curriculum
education for children of differing ages 5-16.

Objectives. strategies and activities
Objectives:

» To maintain existing academies being recognised as at least good or outstanding by Ofsted.

* To ensure that all academies achieve excellent standards and statutory outcomes (above national
average).

* To maintain outstanding financial management and ensure compliance with all relevant law and
guidance and accounting policies and frameworks as appropriate.

* To ensure that the Trust is a going concern through the implementation of the TLLT financial leadership
model, particularly the efficient and effective application of Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning
(ICFP) and sound model of funding forecasting and multi-year budget planning.

* To focus on all areas of school improvement planning for existing academies in the trust to deliver strong
learner outcomes in all areas, including reducing learner absence and persistent absence, improving
outcomes for disadvantaged learners and reducing the behaviours which lead to learner fixed term
exclusions.

* To continue to progress on the journey to deliver a strong school improvement model to schools beyond
the Trust, in order to positively influence the lives and success of more young people, including through
measured and steady Trust growth, bringing more academies into our family of schools if and when
appropriate.

The Legacy Learning Trust (TLLT) is founded on firmly held beliefs that education and learning are about high
expectation, high aspirations and opportunity regardless of background, where learners should be supported to
achieve their very best in the classroom and are encouraged to develop as well rounded individuals who are well
prepared for life in modern Britain.

The co-founders of TLLT are the schools of Acklam Grange School and Linthorpe Community Primary School.
These are two highly successful schools, who individually and more recently in collaboration, have improved
outcomes for children, demonstrated financial efficiencies and provided exceptional professional development of
staff.

We want to be known for “Placing learners and learning at the heart of all that we do”,
Guiding Principles of the Trust

» Care for the individual

» Striving for excellence

» Celebration of difference

* Development leaders at all levels
* Upholding the Nolan Principles

Strategic Aims of the Trust

* Develop and nurture outstanding leadership and management in and across The Legacy Learning Trust
(KPI3)

Secure good or better teaching, learning and assessment (KPI2)

Foster excellent personal development, behaviour and welfare (KPI2)

Promote excellent spiritual, moral, social and cultural understanding (KPI2)

Improve and achieve excellent outcomes across each phase (KPI1)

Be a highly effective MAT with academies which run efficiently, which are well organised and value for
money. (KPI4)
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Strategies

Our trust recognises that in order to be successful we need to maintain:
* Shared and clear vision and values
* A strong model of school improvement within and beyond our Trust
* A curriculum which is fit for purpose academically and financially
* Arecognition and understanding of the accountability frameworks we work in:
¢ Academies Financial Handbook (AFH)
* National Schools Commissioner (NSC)/Regional Schools Commissioner (RSC)
» Ofsted
* Department for Education (DfE)
« Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
¢ Nolan principles for public life
< A Scheme of Delegation which enables responsibility to sit with those whao are accountable
» Astrong, stable and talented workforce with staff well-being at the forefront of all activities.

Activities

The Trust underwent a restructure of executive leadership in 2020/21 in preparation for the 2021/22 year.
Secondary and primary phase expertise continues to be prevalent across the team with strong leadership
structures in the academies within the Trust.

Development of an associate membership model began, expected to bring opportunities for future growth as and
when appropriate.

School improvement work continued beyond the Trust with several other schools, in order to share specialist
expertise in leadership and management, teaching and learning and financial management, promoting system
leadership and positively impacting on the lives of young people in the North East region.

Public benefit

The trust provides effective school to school support and extensive CPD opportunities locally and nationally. The
Executive Headteacher/CEOQ is also a National Leader of Education and schools within the Trust have a number
of Specialist Leaders of Education.

Both schools have a strong community presence. Acklam Grange School offers a sport and leisure provision to
its local community on evenings, weekends and during school holidays.

Executive leaders and senior leaders hold designated positions in the wider sector both locally, regionally and
nationally (e.g. DIE Primary Headteacher Reference Group, Middlesbrough SMF Chair, Pixl Associate, School
Financial Success partner, Schools North East board membership)

The trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance
Summary of Trust Performance

At the Primary Phase, SATs and other assessments were suspended due to Covid 19 and at the Secondary
Phase, GCSE exams were cancelled so results were awarded using Centre Assessment Grades for the second
year running.

Much planning, preparation, strategic and operational focus and resources — human and financial have been
directed towards ensuring that staff and pupils/students across the Trust are safe, guidelines have been followed
and that both schools have opened to the required groups of children in the timescales set by government and
are offering a broad and balanced curriculum within limitations on delivery, wider opportunities and type of activity
in school and after school. Risk assessments for the welfare and safety of all learners, staff and visitors were
regularly updated and effectively communicated, including with Unions.
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September to December 2020

Both schools remained open to all this term, both schools aiming to return to the normality of face to face
teaching, within a much restricted environment. As the term progressed and reports of positive Covid cases
grew, both in the schools and locally and nationally, further challenges presented themselves in terms of staffing
and managing bubble/cohort closures across all phases. Any learners unable to attend the school due to a
bubble/cohort closure and/or isolation received a robust home learning offer, where safeguarding was prioritised
and a broad and balanced curriculum was delivered remotely.

January to March 2021
A full national lockdown was instigated on 4 January. Both schools remained open to the children of key workers

and vulnerable children throughout this time, with varying numbers attending, increasing as the term progressed.
Both schools had a comprehensive rota system in place to ensure that the appropriate staff were in school, and
were supported in terms of Child Protection, first aid and referral. Again, those leaners unable to attend school
due to the national lockdown had a comprehensive home learning offer in place.

Wider opening — 8 March onwards

Both schools undertook a thorough risk assessment using the TLLT Risk Assessment template, which was
shared with trustees, with staff at each school, a copy sent to locally based unions and published on the TLLT
website. Both schools worked in a clear, planned and focused manner to prepare the site, staff, parents and
ulimately the learners for wider opening in a safe manner, following government guidance. A recovery curriculum
was put in place to ensure that learners began to build up learning that they had missed and both schools placed
physical and emotional wellbeing at the heart of these strategies.

Year 11 GCSE Certification 2021

The GCSE Exam series being cancelled this summer led to a significant amount of extra work for all staff
involved.

Following release of guidance from JCQ all GCSE and vocational courses the school undertook the following
actions:

* A thorough audit of all curriculum areas was conducted to identify aspects of the curriculum that had
been taught, which had been taught and assessed and which had either not been taught or very lightly
covered.

* An assessment programme taking into account what had been taught and also any access
arrangements which students may need had to be created and shared.

* Undertook standardisation of marking training to promote greater consistency between staff marking of
exam scripts.

» Staff were not allowed to mark papers from their own students wherever possible to avoid unconscious
bias.

» A strategic PD day took place on Friday 21st May. This gave staff time to collate and moderate the
evidence required for student grades.

* Faculty Leaders had until Friday 28th May to moderate subject grade distributions and submit their
grades centrally after conducting meetings with all teaching.

* SLT undertook whole school moderation ensuring that any deviations might be considered historically
typical were thoroughly evidenced and checked.

* Centre Assessment Policy was submitted and successfully passed stage 1 and 2 of JCQ's quality
assurance process with no recommendations.

* Final student grades (3000+) were entered to the exam boards on 18th June 2021.

* All standardised work record sheets were stored centrally in readiness for the appeals process.

» The academy was notified in July that all grades and policies had been accepted without a single grade
change or recommendation from the exam boards or JCQ.

* Results day was held on August 12th 2021.

* The school received 11 stage 1 appeals from students (50% from core subjects) that challenged an
administrative error or maladministration of the certification process. All appeals were unsuccessful as
no evidence of either was found.

e 2 appeals are currently at stage 2 — which is a centre challenge with the exam boards with the school’s
evidence.
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Key performance indicators
September 2021

Primary Phase:

Linthorpe Community Primary School

All primary pupils returned to school at the beginning of September 2021 and have responded well to the return
to more normality in school. Attendance at primary in September was 96.8% which is strong and above national
average.

Linthorpe was an early adopter of the new Early Years framework following significant reforms. This led to
extensive work across 2021 in building a new EYFS curriculum which addressed the differing needs of 2, 3 and 4
year olds.

The new EYFS curriculum:
« builds upon the characteristics of effective teaching and learning
« prioritises the Prime areas of learning

* places high emphasis on communication, language and vocabulary development ensuring that children
can communicate effectively

¢ In Reception, provides a secure knowledge of phonics, which gives children the foundations for future
learning, especially in preparation for them to become confident and fluent readers.

+ provides a strong basis for mathematical learning

» provides a rich, stimulating environment that sparks a natural curiosity and promotes independence and
resilience

» develops Cultural Capital; using and enhancing the experiences and opportunities available to children

» ensures a balance of focused teacher directed learning, uninterrupted play and scaffolded learning
opportunities

Although the statutory reporting and accountability of the Phonics Screening Check (PSC) was removed 20-21,
the check still took place but in autumn term 2020 for the Y2 cohort, instead of in June 2020. LCPS achieved
90% at the standard which is above national and is further evidence of the effectiveness of our curriculum and
quality of teaching both in school and remotely across the pandemic. The current Y2 cohort will also sit their PSC
a term later in autumn 2021 but their checks at Y1 showed a significant gap to national due to the proportion of
teaching missed by this year group. Phonics teaching and early reading remains a relentless focus for KS1
teams.

All Phase leaders have created mini action plans for each year group to address any cohort gaps to national and
resources have been directed to the groups, subjects, classes in most need of additionality. Data for Y3 is
showing the most challenging gap currently although all groups will be challenged to return to national standards
and beyond.

Secondary Phase:
Acklam Grange School

A staggered return at the beginning of September 2021 was undertaken by the SLT to allow all students to
complete two on site LFT before commencing their learning. Over 1084 students consented (73%) but just over
700 students completed both tests (50%) with 4 students testing positive. Year 7 students returned for two
student PD days from the 7th September to allow for the disruption caused to their transition and to allow other
staff to support the 10 bay test centre. The remainder of the school returned to on-site education on the 9th
September with a mixture of Student PD day activities and normal curriculum lessons.

The Attendance up until 25th September was 94.1% which is in line with our September 2020 figure 94.2% for
the same time period. This does highlight that there is still a significant amount of disruption to students learning
due to COVID related issues coupled with a high number of LOA forms for re-arranged holidays and students
unable to return from outside the country. DfE figures showed that on 14th September 2021 the average
attendance on that day across all secondary schools was 80.2% and Acklam Grange was 94.4%.

-10 -
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Within the first two weeks Faculty and Year reviews have been completed by the Headteacher and ail faculties
have continued to review their Schemes of Learning, Progress and Assessments in order to ensure the structure
of the learning activities take into account essential topics, content and skills that may have not been secured by
all students over the past 18 months. These SoLPs have been quality assured and scrutinised by leaders to
ensure there is a rapid recovery in any gaps in students’ knowledge, Staff training and an audit of need has also
been completed.

A consultation is out at present to determine if and how the GCSE examinations will be conducted in summer
2022 series. Some subjects will see a reduction in the number of papers students are required to sit or the
method of assessment will be modified. However, this is not across all subjects and still remains a real pressure
point on both staff and students. The government are also considering a contingency plan in case the GCSE
exams are not able to be conducted. Hopefully this will be released much earlier than last year.

Remote Education and Catch-Up Funding

Both schools have focused on ensuring that there is a good quality remote education for learners that require this
access. Both schools have evaluated their use of catch-up funding that was made available across the 20-21
year. Further plans are in place for the use of the additional recovery funding announced by DFE in September
2021.

Local Lockdown Plans
Both schools within the trust have put into place a Coronavirus Outbreak Management Plan, alongside their
current risk assessment based on current guidance. The impact of a potential local lockdown would see a return

to many of the previous measures to mitigate the spread of the virus if cases spike, with the need to ensure that
remote learning is planned and implemented for both phases.

Primary Phase:

Headlines 2021:

Although no statutory data can be used for accountability purposes, 3 external expert reviews were held
following the return to all pupils to validate the work of the teams across the following areas:

EYFS Curriculum and provision review

Review carried out by the LA lead officer responsible for Early Years Development who is an Ofsted inspector.
This was incredibly positive and affirming and left no areas for development across the whole review. Practice
and leadership was described as skilful, dedicated and demonstrating high expectations.

External Supervision for i fequarding Leads
This visit scrutinised caseloads and reviewed outcomes for children and progress against plans. This was again
incredibly positive and there were no recommendations regarding our regular practice but some suggestions for

progression of cases were given. This will be implemented in secondary Phase next academic year as best
practice for safeguarding teams.

Review of Provision across Pandemic

This was carried out by a colleague headteacher who had undergone a similar external review in his own school.
Issues reviewed were:

¢ Quality of Remote Education
» Safeguarding during school closure period
* Wellbeing of staff and school leaders

Again, LCPS performed highly across all areas and some useful suggestions were provided as to how befter to
evidence some aspects of the school’s work if these questions were raised in an inspection.

-11-
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Secondary Phase:

Headlines 2021 with Centre Assessed Grades with no GCSE examinations:

Year Progress 8 Attainment 8 % En & Ma % Ebacc (All Students)
94 9-5 9-4 9.5
2021 +0.5 5.48 76% 52% 26% 21%
2020 +0.44 5.35 76% 50% 33% 24%
2019 +0.34 5.06 70% 45% 33% 22%
Nat -0.03 Nat 4.65 Nat 64% Nat 43% Nat 25% Nat 17%

Acklam Grange GCSE outcomes remain extremely strong. Due to the different assessment methods it is not
possible to compare 2019, 2020 or 2021 results against each like for like, however the key highlights are:

* The Progress 8 score remains in the top 20% of the country according to invalidated data comparisons.

* Attainment 8 score remains very strong above 5.0 for the third year running and significantly above
nationals.

» 76% of students achieved a pass and 52% achieved a strong pass in English and Maths which remains
in line with last academic year and significantly above national figures.

* The % of students achieving a good pass in the EBACC dropped from 33% to 26% but this was due to
the number for students who were eligible for the measure. Only 26% of the year group could have
achieved this making it a 100% conversion rate. The strong EBACC measure has remained above
national again and is broadly in line with previous years.

» Overall all subjects performed extremely well and coped with a very difficult year.

* No subject or attainment measure has significantly increased demonstrating good leadership and
management of the process and ensuring the students that deserved their grades received them.

* 99% of all students received the grades to move onto a Post-16 route with the 2 students who have not
receiving continued support from the school.

Performance against Targets for 2021:

~ WholeSchool |
S i=sw T T HEI A IRSL W W IRl

Attainment 8
Progress 8
English & Maths 9-5
English & Maths 94
Ebacc 9-4
Ebacc 9-5

Exceeded target

Met target

~Below target

Significantly below target
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Going concern

The board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the board of trustees continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis
can be found in the statement of accounting policies.

In arriving at this position the Trustees have considered the impact of Covid-19, which has been fully reported to
Trustees at individual academy and whole Trust level. Whilst Covid-19 is likely to continue to increase
operational costs in 2021/22 and beyond, the certainty of some Covid-19 related grants means that the resulting
net effect of the Covid-19 financial impact, and the known information about future funding, is not expected to
materially impact the judgement of going concern.

Protectina the success of the academy trust

The objects of the Trust are to advance education in the United Kingdom, for the public benefit, offering a broad
and balanced curriculum education for children of differing ages 5-16. Members and Trustees always seek to
promote the success of TLLT, including in the following ways:

* Arobust risk management system which includes identifying pertinent risks and implementing mitigating
actions to reduce risks to an acceptable level. This is described in more detail in the Governance
Statement.

* Care for the interests of employees through the application of the Teachers’ Pay and Conditions and
National Joint Council pay and conditions to all teachers and support staff. Monitor the gender pay gap
report to ensure the gap remains small and in line with or better than the national picture, acting as
appropriate if this is not the case. The Trust remains committed to reducing workload and investing in
technology to help to achieve this aim.

* Strong values shared across the trust with an emphasis on respect for all.

= Develop strategic relationships with suppliers to support the business community, particularly during the
Covid-19 pandemic in line with DfE guidelines, PPN 02/20 and PPN 04/20.

* Maintain strong relationships with TLLT families through excellent communications and effective
engagement strategies, including but not exclusive to use of technology and social media and in-school
events.

« Continuing to be at the heart of the TLLT community through improved educational outcomes for
children and the provision of community use facilities, particularly through the Acorn Centre at AGS.

= Strong reputation for high expectations and high standards in relation to educational outcomes, sound
governance, financial performance and robust systems of internal control.

» Strong reputation as a provider for professional learning beyond the trust and effective school to school
support when needed.

» Fair and consistent implementation of robust policies to support the Trust's approach to pay, staff
benefits, whistleblowing, grievances, admissions staff and student well-being and mental health.

Financial review
The grants received form the ESFA and associated expenditure from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 are
shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

All of the expenditure in the Statement of Financial Activities is in furtherance of the Trust's objectives.

During the twelve month period from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021, expenditure amounting to
£13,436,563 was incurred or accrued. This was offset entirely by grants receivable from the ESFA and other
funds.

The restricted fixed asset fund balance has been reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected
useful life of the assets concerned. These assets are used primarily for providing the Trust's educational
operations and associated support to students.

Student numbers across the Trust continue to increase. Trustees expect student numbers to increase further
linked to the growing reputation of our academies in the local community based on successful outcomes across
all areas. Increased student numbers will secure increased funding in future years, but with an increasing
pressure on expenditure, particularly in relation to pay budgets and the financial impact of Covid, Trustees
prioritise strategic financial planning and multi-year budget planning across the Trust.
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Covid-19 brought additional revenue costs during the year. These were mainly focused on ensuring the
academies continued to be Covid-secure and IT costs to support effective remote learning. In addition, there
were costs associated with catch up and recovery when the academies were able to be fully open. These costs
were in part offset by operational savings made during periods of partial school closure and in some cases
specific grant funding as detailed in the financial statements.

The Trust prides itself on offering a value for money educational provision, with all financial decisions made being
based on this principle. Financial leadership at all levels is strong across the Trust. Trustees, local councils,
executive and senior leadership teams, finance staff and budget holders all have a sound understanding of the
value for money principles and how this translates to their role in school and their financial behaviour. There is a
strong emphasis on the impact of spending on student outcomes through the Trust's reporting and accountability
mechanisms and through strategic development planning and action planning. The Trust's Pupil Premium reports
clearly demonstrate the impact of spending in this area on the outcomes of that specific cohort of students.

The pension liability on the balance sheet is unlikely to crystallise and trustees monitor the risk associated with
being members of the LGPS.

Free school meal support
In 2020-21 the trust participated in the national voucher scheme for free school meals acting only as a facilitator/
distributor. This has no bearing on the financial disclosures in the accounts.

Reserves policy
Trustees review the level of Trust reserves termly and annually and have agreed that the Trust should aim to hold
a prudent level of reserves designed to provide:

. sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants
. a contingency fund for unexpected emergencies
. funding capacity for future estate maintenance and planned capital investment subject to

conditions as set out by ESFA
J funding to cover any future liabilities as outlined in the Financial Statements.

Trustees agree that expenditure of Trust reserves is in line with the short and medium term Trust Development
Plans that support academies in the Trust in raising standards.

As of 31 August 2021, the level of Trust reserves are £1,101,041, including restricted general reserves of
£316,308 and unrestricted reserves of £784,733. Net current assets as at 31 August 2021 was £1,101,040.

The Trustees believe that the level of reserves held by the Trust as at 31 August 2021 is sufficient to meet the
Reserves Policy.

Investment policy

The Trust investment powers are governed by the Aricles of Association, which permits the Charitable Company
to deposit or invest any funds not immediately required for the furtherance of its objectives. Trustees agreed a
policy for investment in which decisions on how much to invest and how long to invest for, will be based on
operational requirements, demonstrated by cash flow forecasts produced by the CFO and taking into account a
contingency fund which ensures that extra funds are available on a regular timely basis to deal with any
unforeseen emergencies. The cash flow forecasts will take account of the annual budget and spending plans
approved by the Governing Body and updated on a monthly basis.

Trustees have agreed to invest when they feel it is prudent to do so, based on the financial performance of each
individual academy within the Trust and medium term financial plans. When an investment is made and funds
come to maturity Trustees will then make the decision whether to re-invest or whether the funds will be required
for urgent necessities or contingencies.

The Trust will not take out any long term deposits until reliable cash flow patterns have been established and
medium term budget planning gives ongoing confidence in relation to cash flow and future funding. Monies will
only be paid into term deposits not exceeding six months. Trustees have an approved investment policy.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The Trustees regularly assess the major risks to which the Trust is exposed. The principal risks are as follows:

1a) Success/outcome rates drop

1b) Ofsted Inspection result of a school/academy in TLLT less than Grade 2, Good
2a) Quality of teaching and learning decreases

2b) Attendance decreases

2¢) Exclusions increase

3a) TLLT does not have sufficient staff capacity and capability.
3b) Leadership/staff capacity compromised e.g. absence.

3c) Key management roles remain vacant

3d) TLLT unable to recruit sufficient trustees

4a) Deficit budget

4b) Serious safeguarding issue which is not dealt with effectively.
4c¢) Increase in accidents

4d) Compliance issues -~ GDPR, complaints

5a) Covid-19 pandemic ~ risk of transmission

5b) Covid-19 pandemic — severity of symptoms

5¢) Covid-19 pandemic — risk of serious disease and death

5d) Covid-19 pandemic — financial risk

The Trust risk register is supplemented by individual academy risk registers. Additionally, individual academies
maintain risk documentation in relation to Covid-19 that is routinely reviewed and updated as new guidance, and,
or operational requirements, become relevant.

In addition, the Trust has a Financial Handbook in place which ensures that systems of internal control are in
place to enable sound financial management across the Trust. The Trust will have three internal assurance visits
during the year carried out by an externally appointed internal auditor, independent from the Trust.

There are systems in place across the Trust to minimise risks including operating procedures and internal
financial controls. As part of its risk management strategy the Trust uses the ‘Risk Protection
Arrangements’ (RPA) which is specifically designed for academies as an alternative to commercial insurance.
This has been of particular benefit during the Covid-19 pandemic where the RPA covered a wide ranges of risks
in more generous terms than typically found with commercial insurers.

Fundraising
The Legacy Learning Trust approaches fundraising under the following categories:

» Student/pupil fundraising
» External grant finding
» Support/donations from local partners/ businesses/suppliers

Student/pupil fundraising is undertaken under the supervision of staff members. The beneficiary of the
fundraising is always known in advance and is clearly communicated to those people who may contribute
donations to raise funds. Fundraising activities are not intrusive or persistent and do not put any person under
undue pressure to donate.

External grant finding is undertaken by selected staff who have appropriate training. Grant applications are
completed according to the specifications and rules of the grant and are quality assured by the CFO or CEO. A
log of applications made, their status and the result is kept for internal management purposes to ensure a co-
ordinated and coherent approach to fundraising across the Trust. Applications for grants related to Covid-19 are
co-ordinated by the Trust.

Support/donations from local partners/businesses/suppliers is considered on a case by case basis. Any offers of
donations or support are viewed alongside the Trust's gifts and hospitality policy before acceptance and
appropriate records are maintained. Where the Trust has approached these groups for donations for specific
projects, full details have been maintained and all appropriate interests are recorded.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
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Energy consumption

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year
- Gas combustion

~ Fuel consumed for transport

- Electricity purchased

Emissions of CO2 equivalent

Scope 1 - direct emissions

- Gas combustion

- Fuel consumed for owned transport

Scope 2 - indirect emissions

- Electricity purchased

Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy trust
Total gross emissions

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil

Quantification and reporting methodology

Intensity measurement

2021
kWh

2,295,923
1,066,116
2,028

2020
kWh

3,364,067

2021

2020

metric tonnes metric tonnes

421.00
1.00

422.00

226.00

1.00

649.00

0.32

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

Plans for future periods

In line with our aims and key objectives our plans for future periods are to:

» Continue to provide high quality, value for money education for all our students across the Trust

= Continually improve the quality of teaching, learning and assessment through for example, curriculum

review and outstanding professional development

* Give high priority to PDBW and SMSC ensuring personal development for our students as well as

academic achievement.

« Continue to offer exceptional school to school support sharing our expertise in the interests of system

leadership

» Action growth plans for the Trust as and when appropriate in the local and regional context.

» Re-align and refine growth plans in the national context, including the Covid-19 pandemic, which may

slow progress in this area due to financial and human resource capacity.
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With a newly established Executive Leadership Team in position the Trust will continue to develop its associate
membership model, seeking opportunities to grow its family of schools if and when appropriate.

School improvement beyond the Trust will remain an important focus to better the life chances of more young
people in our area.

Covid-19 has had an unprecedented impact on all schools, not just financially but socially, culturally,
academically and on mental health and well-being of staff and students. Covid recovery in our existing
academies in the Trust remains our key priority to maintain the excellent standards achieved so far and sustain
improvement into the future.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
The Trust holds no funds as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.

Auditor
In so far as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

A resolution proposing that Azets Audit Services Limited be reappointed as auditor of the charitable company will
be put to the members.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on 09 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

,g ](,krj\/\, Q.

C Jones S Lymer
Chair Accounting Officer
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Scope of responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Legacy Learning Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. As trustees, we have reviewed and taken
account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The
Legacy Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the
board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 4 times during the twelve-month
period. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
A Crawshaw (Resigned 4 October 2021) 4 4
C Jones (Chair) 4 4
L Longstaff 4 4
M J Pout 2 4
S J Sarwar 3 4
N Worth 2 4
J A Park 3 4
H U Rashid 3 4

The REF Committee has formally met 3 times during the twelve-month period. Attendance during the year at
REF Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
A Crawshaw (Resigned 4 October 2021)
C Jones (Chair)

L Longstaff

M J Pout

S J Sarwar

N Worth

J A Park

H U Rashid

WNON-2WWwW
W WwWwwwwww
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The Standards Committee has formally met 3 times during the twelve-month period. Attendance during the year
at Standards Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
A Crawshaw (Resigned 4 October 2021)
C Jones (Chair)

L Longstaff

M J Pout

S J Sarwar

N Worth

J A Park

H U Rashid

WNN = 2NN
W WL WL WWww

* In accordance with Government direction on restrictions imposed to manage Covid all meetings were
held remotely using the Zoom platform.

The Trust Board has established a number of committees including the Resources, Employment and Finance
Committee. The board of Trustees has reviewed and agreed key policies and documentation critical to the
effective establishment of a Trust in the period from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 including:

Articles of association

Scheme of Delegation

Terms of Reference for Trust Committees and the Local Councils

Due diligence process and procedure

Review of individual school progress and results

Review and monitoring of the Trust strategic planning, including vision and growth planning
Finance Procedures for the Trust

Approval of the 2021-22 annual budget

The Trust Board was established on 1 July 2018 and its major challenge, during the 2018-19 period, was to
ensure that all processes and procedures were fully embedded, compliant and effective. During 2019-20
challenges included response to Covid-19. This continued in 2020-21 with the major focus being on response to
Covid and Covid recovery.

Trustees have already undertaken training, and continue to work with the CEQ, Deputy CEO and CFO to further
develop and enhance quality of data and understanding of data.

A second review of governance was carried out in 2019/20, the impact and outcomes of which are that
governors undertook a self and team review of their skills against the governance competency framework. This
resulted in Trustees and Local Councils compiling their own development plan, which is reviewed regularly. In
2020-21 the trust continued to recruit, induct and train governors at local council level to ensure a complete and
effective governance system at all levels across the Trust.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The challenge from the Covid-19 pandemic continued in this period with ongoing additional and unplanned
spending to ensure that the academies in the Trust can provide a safe environment for staff and students at the
various stages throughout the pandemic. In this period costs were also incurred in relation to testing and
vaccinations, again unplanned at the time of budget setting. At all times, best endeavours to ensure value for
money have been sought and detailed records have been maintained.
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This has involved claiming for additional funding where eligible and ensuring economy in resource provision,
efficiency in resource deployment and an evaluation of effectiveness to inform future practice. The Trust
continues to seek external funding where appropriate to minimise the negative financial effect of additional costs
although this is not fully within the Trust’s control and is reliant on national policy.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust
has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

» Sharing staffing skills and resources

* Improving the trust wide contracts register to support the re-negotiating a number of contracts on a trust
wide basis

* An ongoing and timely review of contracts and service level agreements

* Continued development of central services to serve the whole Trust improving service quality and
reducing cost.

* Extending the central services to replace some previously outsourced support across the Trust (IT
Central Service now trust wide)

* Trust wide consideration and implementation of Covid secure measures.

The impact on educational outcomes has been:

¢ Savings made have been reinvested into strategies to support covid recovery and to improve student
outcomes

» Established strategies, which are having a positive impact on student outcomes, can be continued,
despite rising costs and funding challenges

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Legacy Learning Trust for
the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
accounts.

Capacity to handie risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
trustees.
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The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes;

comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided:

to appoint Clive Owen LLP as internal auditor to carry out termly internal assurance reviews.
The external auditor's role includes performing a range of checks on the academy trust's financial
systems as one of the options under the Academies Financial Handbook.

The auditor reports to the board of trustees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of
the financial responsibilities of the board of trustees in the December meeting each year.

An internal assurance review was undertaken in spring 2021 (2 days) and summer 2021 (1 day), which
considered the following areas:

Key financial controls

Census

HR and Staffing

Staff Absence

Risk management

Business Continuity Planning

Education Visits

Payroll and Expenses

Review of previous audit action plans and updates

Only minor recommendations were identified which have since been implemented by the Trust.

An annual report summarised the internal audit activity for the year, along with recommendations for
improvement and was reported to the trustees.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the internal auditor;

* the work of the external auditor;

* the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

e the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framewaork.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 09 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

/_’éo&@w'/

C Jones S Lymer
Chair Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of The Legacy Learning Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of

trustees and ESFA.

S Lymer
Accounting Officer

09 December 2021
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The trustees (who are also the directors of The Legacy Learning Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

+ prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 09 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

C Jones
Chair
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Opinion

We have audited the accounts of The Legacy Learning Trust for the year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise
the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
accounts, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts;

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended,;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the accounts and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts
or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year
for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report, including the incorporated
strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the Financial Reporting Council's website, to detect
material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

We obtain and update our understanding of the entity, its activities, its control environment, and likely future
developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the entity is
complying with that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. This includes consideration of the risk of acts by the entity that were contrary to applicable laws and
regulations, including fraud.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we
designed procedures which included:

* Enquiry of senior leadership, Governors/Trustees and those charged with governance around actual and
potential litigation and claims as well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

* Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

» Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material
effect on the financial statements or the operations of the company through enquiry and inspection;

* Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with applicable laws and regulations including compliance with the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,

» Performing audit work over the recognition of grant income and the allocation of expenditure to funds;

* Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of
journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the rationale of significant
transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for indicators of
potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’'s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Graham Fitzgerald BA FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 1
for and on behalf of Azets Audit Services @~ ... \ 7‘\2,20Z

Statutory Auditor Wynyard Park House
Wynyard Avenue
Wynyard
Billingham
United Kingdom
TS22 5TB
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SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 8 October 2021 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by The Legacy Learning Trust during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them,

This report is made solely to The Legacy Learning Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the The Legacy Learning Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Legacy Learning Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Legacy Learning Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Legacy Learning Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 March 2018 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.
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The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

® ®© ® e ® ® ® 8§ @

completion of self assessment questionnaire by Accounting Officer

discussions with the Accounting Officer and finance team

review of Internal Assurance report

review of trustee and committee meeting minutes

review of finance and other relevant policies

review of purchases, expenses and expense claims on a sample basis including the application of
controls and tendering processes where applicable

review of gifts and hospitality transactions including the application of controls

review of credit and debit card transactions including the application of controls

review of payroll transactions on a sample bases including the application of controls

review of potential special payments to staff

review of leases and consideration of areas where borrowing may have been incurred
consideration of transactions with related and connected parties

review of register of business interests for completeness and compliance with regulations
enquiries into transactions that may require disclosure under ESFA delegated authority rules
consideration of value for money and appropriateness of transactions

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

hodi Avdst Semiaes

Reporting Accountant
Azets Audit Services

Dated: .

1
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
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Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021 2020
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 23,743 3,000 620,135 646,878 39,739
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 37,106 13,559,669 - 13,596,775 12,820,975
- Funding for teaching schools 25 - - - - 123,700
Other trading activities 5 134,593 - - 134,593 179,235
Investments 6 292 - - 292 1,789
Total 195,734 13,562,669 620,135 14,378,538 13,165,438
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 135,341 - - 135,341 220,592
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 9 36,356 14,137,866 764,923 14,939,145 14,163,076
- Teaching schools - - - - 123,700
Total 7 171,697 14,137,866 764,923 15,074,486 14,507,368
Net income/(expenditure) 24,037 (575,197)  (144,788) (695,948) (1,341,930)
Transfers between funds 17 - (43,670) 43,670 - -

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit

pension schemes 19 - (347,000) - (347,000) (3,615,000)
Net movement in funds 24,037  (965,867) (101,118) (1,042,948) (4,956,930)
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 760,696 (5,608,825) 37,129,470 32,281,341 37,238,271

Total funds carried forward 784,733 (6,574,692) 37,028,352 31,238,393 32,281,341
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Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2020

Notes
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4
- Funding for teaching schools 25
Other trading activities 5
Investments 6
Total
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 9
- Teaching schools
Total 7
Net expenditure
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes 19

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2020
£ £ £ £

- - 39,739 39,739
53,457 12,767,518 - 12,820,975
- 123,700 - 123,700
179,235 - - 179,235
1,789 - - 1,789
234,481 12,891,218 39,739 13,165,438
220,592 - - 220,592
53,910 13,364,102 745,064 14,163,076
- 123,700 - 123,700
274,502 13,487,802 745,064 14,507,368
(40,021) (596,584) (705,325) (1,341,930)
- (3,615,000) - {3,615,000)
(40,021) (4,211,584) (705,325) (4,956,930)
800,717 (1,397,241) 37,834,795 37,238,271
760,696 (5,608,825) 37,129,470 32,281,341
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THE LEGACY LEARNING TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021
Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13

Current assets
Debtors 14
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year 15
Net current assets

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 19
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:

Restricted funds 17
- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds 17

Total funds

2021
£ £

37,028,353

737,320
1,130,722

1,868,042

(767,002)

1,101,040
38,129,393
(6,891,000)

31,238,393

37,028,352
316,308

(6,891,000)

30,453,660
784,733

31,238,393

2020
£ £

37,058,657

1,012,206
578,264

1,590,470

(696,786)

893,684
37,952,341
(5,671,000)

32,281,341

37,129,470
62,175
(5,671,000)

31,520,645
760,696

32,281,341

The accounts on pages 31 to 55 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 09 December 2021

and are sign

on their behalf by:

C Jones
Chair

Company Number 11281425
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THE LEGACY LEARNING TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 20

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2021
£ £
666,650
292
40,135
580,000
(734,619)
(114,192)
552,458
578,264

1,130,722

2020
£ £
240,242
1,789
39,739
(105,966)
(64,438)
175,804
402,460

578,264
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1

11

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)),
the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006,

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’'s ability to continue as a going concern. Thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis, The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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1.4

1.5

Accounting policies (Continued)

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from
other trading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it
is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the
accounts until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a

third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges are aliocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raisind funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

haritable activiti
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement
of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.
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1

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (Continued)

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on
a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

The trust’'s land and buildings are occupied on a 125 year lease from the local authority. In the view of the
trustees, the risks and rewards of occupying the site have been substantially transferred to the trust and
therefore the land and buildings have been recognised as a donation on conversion and capitalised within
the restricted fixed assets fund. Land and buildings have been valued by trustees on a depreciated
replacement cost basis based on previous values provided by the local authority. Other assets transferred
on conversion have been valued based on an estimated book value based on their original purchase cost.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
of services it must provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place
and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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1.9

1.10

1.1

Accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in
the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the
statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised
gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed
at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021, Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement

Land and buildings

The trust’s land and buildings are occupied on a 125 year lease from the local authority. In the view of the
trustees, the risks and rewards of occupying the site have been substantially transferred to the trust and
therefore the land and buildings have been recognised as a donation on conversion and capitalised within
the restricted fixed assets fund. The land and buildings are valued on the basis of valuations provided by
the ESFA/local authority

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated as to write off the cost of an asset off over its useful economic life. The
accounting policies are disclosed in the accounting policy above.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 40,135 40,1356 39,739
Other donations 23,743 583,000 606,743 -
23,743 623,135 646,878 39,739
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4

Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

DfE / ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)
Other DfE / ESFA grants:
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Teachers pay grants

PE and sports premium
Rates

Others

Other government grants
Local authority grants
Special educational projects

Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus job retention scheme grant
Covid-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Coronavirus exceptional support

Covid catch up premium

Other funding

Teaching schools
Catering

Other incoming resources

Total funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £

- 10,765,933 10,765,933 10,406,807

- 107,858 107,858 84,437

- 894,005 894,005 887,309

- 522,737 522,737 519,617

- - - 21,220

- 88,331 88,331 207,057

- 125,659 125,659 27,737

- 12,504,523 12,504,523 12,154,184

- 841,243 841,243 487,823

- 9,662 9,662 -

- 850,905 850,905 487,823

- 1,117 1,117 14,189

- 43,091 43,091 111,322

- 160,033 160,033 -

- 204,241 204,241 125,511

- - - 123,700
36,356 - 36,356 35,569
750 - 750 17,888
37,106 - 37,106 177,157
37,106 13,559,669 13,596,775 12,944,675

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes

in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above.

The academy trust furloughed some of its other staff under the government's CJRS. The funding received
of £1k relates to staff costs in respect of staff which are included within note 10 below as appropriate.

The academy trust received £160k of funding for catch-up premium, all of which was utilised in the year
with none carried forward to be spent in 2021/22.
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5

Other trading activities

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 11,951 - 11,951 19,029
Catering income 267 - 267 285
Parental contributions 12,303 - 12,303 34,208
Other income 110,072 - 110,072 125,713
134,593 - 134,593 179,235
Investment income
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 292 - 292 1,789
Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising funds
- Direct costs 132,975 - 2,366 135,341 220,592
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 8,923,103 - 473,289 9,396,392 8,797,876
- Allocated support costs 2,844,587 1,613,182 1,084,984 5,542,753 5,365,200
Teaching schools
- Direct costs - - - - 123,700
11,900,665 1,613,182 1,660,639 15,074,486 14,507,368
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2021 2020
£ £
Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit 8,225 8,225
- Other services 2,950 7,150
Operating lease rentals 44124 44,119
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 764,923 745,064
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 93,000 24,000
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Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

leadership

human resources;
financial services;
admissions appeals;
marketing and design; and
site team

Acklam Grange charges Linthorpe Community Primary School for these services as they are utilised. The

charge in the year was £71,000,

The amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Acklam Grange School
Linthorpe Community Primary School

Charitable activities

Direct costs
Educational operations
Teaching schools

Support costs
Educational operations

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Technology costs

Premises costs

Legal costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

2021 2020

£ £

71,000 85,038

71,000 85,038

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £

- 9,396,392 9,396,392 8,797,876

- - - 123,700
36,356 5,506,397 5,542,753 5,365,200
36,356 14,902,789 14,939,145 14,286,776
2021 2020

£ £

2,844,587 2,709,507

764,923 745,064

127,754 80,453

848,259 946,612

4,498 1,723

956,721 858,769

(3,989) 23,072

5,542,753 5,365,200
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10 Staff
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
2021 2020
£ £
Wages and salaries 8,263,047 8,166,743
Social security costs 817,995 777,513
Pension costs 2,703,606 2,272,618
Staff costs - employees 11,784,648 11,216,874
Agency staff costs 112,719 112,669
Staff restructuring costs 3,298 14,605
11,900,665 11,344,148
Staff development and other staff costs 10,085 11,932
Total staff expenditure 11,910,750 11,356,080

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments 3,298 14,605
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:
2021 2020
Number Number
Teachers 129 133
Administration and support 169 161
Management 17 19

315 313

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2021 2020
Number Number
£60,001 - £70,000 6 -
£70,001 - £80,000 - 1
£80,001 - £90,000 2 2
£100,001 - £110,000 1 -
£120,001 - £130,000 - 1
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1

12

Staff (Continued)

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension and national
insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust
was £341,164 (2020: £347,302).

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an
employment with the academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts
of employment, and not in respect of their services as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mrs A Crawshaw (Accounting Officer)
Remuneration £105,001 - £110,000 (2020: £120,001 - £125,000)
Employer's pension contributions  £25,001 - £30,000 (2020: £25,001 - £30,000)

During the year, travel and subsistence payments totalling £28 (2020: £397) were reimbursed or paid
directly to 1 trustees (2020: 1 trustees).

The prior year figures relate to a two month period

Trustees' and officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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14

15

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 September 2020
Additions

At 31 August 2021
Depreciation

At 1 September 2020
Charge for the year
At 31 August 2021

Net book value
At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020

Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable

Prepayments and accrued income

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

767,002

Land and Computer Fixtures, Motor Total

buildings equipment fittings & vehicles
equipment

£ £ £ £ £

38,617,527 60,474 62,640 22,714 38,663,355

686,755 24,851 23,013 - 734,619

39,204,282 85,325 85,653 22,714 39,397,974

1,542,820 35,123 11,225 15,530 1,604,698

724,740 24,991 8,568 6,624 764,923

2,267,560 60,114 19,793 22,154 2,369,621

36,936,722 25,211 65,860 560 37,028,353

36,974,707 25,351 51,415 7,184 37,058,657

2021 2020

£ £

34,206 34,551

421,639 573,294

281,475 404,361

737,320 1,012,206

2021 2020

£ £

- 223,488

193,284 188,625

53,307 89

520,411 284,584

696,786
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16 Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2020
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

2021 2020

£ £
203,123 41,756
41,756 76,248
(41,756) (76,248)
203,123 41,756
203,123 41,756

Deferred income consists of universal infant free school meals received in advance of the 2020/21

academic year.
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Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Teachers pay and pension
grants

Rates

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Covid-19 funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Other LA income

Donated assets

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

32,281,341

14,378,538

(347,000)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021

£ £ £ £ £

62,175 10,765,933 (10,497,947) (33,853) 296,308

- 107,858 (107,858) - -

- 894,005 (894,005) - -

- 522,737 (622,737) - -

- 88,331 (88,331) - -

- 125,659 (125,659) - -

- 203,124 (203,124) - -

- 852,022 (822,205) (9,817) 20,000

- 3,000 (3,000) . -
(5,671,000) - (873,000) (347,000) (6,891,000)
(5,608,825) 13,562,669 (14,137,866) (390,670) (6,574,692)
36,933,579 - (722,677) - 36,210,902
171,366 40,135 (5,656) - 205,845
24,525 - (23,159) 33,853 35,219

- - (1,831) 9,817 7,986

- 580,000 (11,600) - 568,400
37,129,470 620,135 (764,923) 43,670 37,028,352
31,520,645 14,182,804 (14,902,789) (347,000) 30,453,660
760,696 195,734 (171,697) - 784,733
(15,074,486) 31,238,393
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the academy. Under the funding
agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that
it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.

Other DfE/ESFA grants include phonics, teachers pay and pension grants, year 7 catch up grant, pupil
premium, PE grant and universal infant free school meals grants received.

Additional Covid-19 funding has also been received and utilised in the year. £20,000 of Tees Valley
Covid-19 funding has been carried forward.

Other government grants include funding received for pupils with special educational needs, early years
funding and pupil premium received from the local authority.

Teaching school income and expenditure is generated as a result of the academy trust's status as a
teaching school.

The pension reserve reflects the LGPS transactions. The costs and income associated with the defined
benefit pension scheme have been recorded in the restricted fund. Staff costs are paid from this fund,
including contributions to the LGPS, and the pension liability has therefore been aligned with these funds.

The Inherited Fixed Asset Fund reflects the fixed assets acquired from the Local Authority on conversion.
Depreciation on these assets is charged against this fund.

Capital grants are reflected in the restricted fixed asset fund, the trust has carried forward no capital funds
into 2021/22.

Unrestricted funds can be used for any purpose, at the discretion of the trustees, within the objects of the
academy trust.

At 31 August 2021 the academy had restricted general and unrestricted funds of £1,101,041.
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17 Funds {Continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 10,406,807 (10,344,632) - 62,175

UIFSM - 84,437 (84,437) - -
Pupil premium 887,309 (887,309) - -
Teachers pay and pension

grants - 519,617 (519,617) - -
PE and sports premium - 21,220 (21,220) - -
Rates - 207,057 (207,057) - -
Other DfE / ESFA grants - 27,737 (27,737) - -
Other government grants - 613,334 (613,334) - -
Teaching schools - 123,700 (123,700) - -
Other restricted funds 54,759 - (54,759) - -
Pension reserve (1,452,000) - (604,000) (3,615,000) (5,671,000)

(1,397,241) 12,891,218 (13,487,802) (3,615,000) (5,608,825)

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion 37,658,598 - (725,019) - 36,933,579

DfE group capital grants 137,040 39,739 (5,413) - 171,366

Capital expenditure from GAG 39,157 - (14,632) - 24,525
37,834,795 39,739 (745,064) - 37,129,470

Total restricted funds 36,437,554 12,930,957 (14,232,866) (3,615,000) 31,520,645

Unrestricted funds

General funds 800,717 234,481 (274,502) - 760,696

Total funds 37,238,271 13,165,438 (14,507,368) (3,615,000) 32,281,341
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17 Funds
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

Acklam Grange School
Linthorpe Community Primary School

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation
£ £ £ £
Acklam Grange School 6,619,406 1,693,433 366,796 1,415,163
Linthorpe Community
Primary School 2,536,673 371,154 96,408 437,531

(Continued)

2021 2020

£ £

564,908 534,216
536,133 288,655
1,101,041 822,871
37,028,352 37,129,470

(6,891,000)  (5,671,000)

31,238,393 32,281,341
Total Total

2021 2020

£ £

9,994,797 9,851,514

3,441,766 3,306,790

9,056,078 2,064,587 463,204 1,852,694

13,436,563 13,158,304

18 Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 37,028,353 37,028,353
Current assets 942,372 925,670 - 1,868,042
Creditors falling due within one year (157,639) (609,363) - (767,002)
Defined benefit pension liability - (6,891,000) - (6,891,000)
Total net assets 784,733 (6,574,693) 37,028,353 31,238,393
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18 Analysis of net assets between funds {Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 37,058,657 37,058,657
Current assets 760,696 758,961 70,813 1,590,470
Creditors falling due within one year - (696,786) - (696,786)
Defined benefit pension liability - (5,671,000) - (5,671,000)
Total net assets 760,696 (5,608,825) 37,129,470 32,281,341
19 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Middlesbrough Borough Council. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
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19 Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

» employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

* total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

» the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,423,735 (2020: £1,251,673).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed confribution rates for future years are 17.5% for
employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2021 2020

£ £
Employer's contributions 457,000 434,000
Employees’ contributions - 146,000
Total contributions 457,000 580,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2021 2020

% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.6 3.2
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.6 22
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.7 1.7
Inflation assumption (CPI) 26 2.2
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Pension and similar obligations

(Continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 21.9 21.8
- Females 23.6 235
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 23.3 232
- Females 25.4 25.3
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
2021 2020
£ £
Discount rate + 0.1% 13,990,000 11,006,000
Discount rate - 0.1% 14,840,000 11,675,000
Mortality assumption + 1 year 13,860,000 10,927,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year 14,956,000 11,743,000
CPlrate + 0.1% 14,754,000 11,607,000
CPlrate - 0.1% 14,077,000 11,074,000
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2021 2020
Fair value  Fair value
£ £
Equities 5,945,947 4,304,640
Cash 623,911 657,024
Property 548,741 453,120
Other assets 398,401 249,216
Total market value of assets 7,517,000 5,664,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £1,271,000 (2020: £(2,469,000)).
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 2021 2020
£ £
Current service cost 1,237,000 1,014,000
Interest income (101,000) (149,000)
Interest cost 194,000 173,000
Total operating charge 1,330,000

-53.

1,038,000



THE LEGACY LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

19

20

Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2021 2020

£ £
At 1 September 2020 11,335,000 9,021,000
Current service cost 1,237,000 1,014,000
Interest cost 194,000 173,000
Employee contributions 155,000 146,000
Actuarial loss 1,517,000 997,000
Benefits paid (30,000) (16,000)
At 31 August 2021 14,408,000 11,335,000
Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

2021 2020

£ £
At 1 September 2020 5,664,000 7,569,000
Interest income 101,000 149,000
Actuarial (gain)/loss 1,170,000 (2,618,000)
Employer contributions 457,000 434,000
Employee contributions - 146,000
Benefits paid (30,000) (16,000)
Effect of non-routine settlements 155,000 -
At 31 August 2021 7,517,000 5,664,000
Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020

£ £
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial
activities) (695,948)  (1,341,930)
Adjusted for:
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (620,135) (39,739)
Investment income receivable (292) (1,789)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 780,000 580,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 93,000 24,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 764,923 745,064
Decrease in debtors 274,886 268,304
Increase in creditors 70,216 6,332
Net cash provided by operating activities 666,650 240,242
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22

23

24

25

Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September Cash flows 31 August

2020 2021
£ £ £

Cash 578,264 552,458 1,130,722

Long-term commitments, including operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was;

2021 2020

£ £

Amounts due within one year 31,034 28,742
Amounts due in two and five years 22,781 37,188

53,815 65,928

Related party transactions

No related party transactions took place in the period of account other than certain trustees' remuneration
and expenses already disclosed in note 11.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before
he or she ceases to be a member.

Teaching schools trading account

2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Direct income
External funding - 123,700
Direct costs
Direct staff costs - 123,700
Total expenditure - (123,700)

Surplus from all sources - -
Teaching schools balances at 1 September 2020 - -

Teaching schools balances at 31 August 2021 - -
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